

**Dr. Johannes LUEBKING, LL.M. (EUI)**, is Head of Unit of unit O2 of the European Commission's Competition Directorate-General, in charge of Antitrust and Merger Case Support. The unit is thereby responsible for providing support to, and ensuring consistency of individual cases across the units in the Mergers and Antitrust fields.

Before joining unit O2 in February 2010, Mr Luebking headed the merger unit in the Task Force Financial Crisis, dealing with the effects of the financial crisis together with two state aids units. He has been leading the investigation in a number of merger cases in particular in the fields of banking and insurance as well as pharmaceuticals, but also in the areas of raw materials, telecoms, financial information, music rights and software. Throughout his work at the Commission, he has been involved in policy projects in the field of merger control and has dealt, *inter alia*, with the review of the Commission's Remedies Notice, adopted in October 2008, and related texts as well as the review of the Commission's Jurisdictional Notice.

Before joining the European Commission, Mr. Luebking worked for several years as an attorney-at-law in the Frankfurt office of the law firm White & Case. He started his professional career as internal council in the legal department of Deutsche Bank.

Mr. Luebking holds a doctorate of the University of Göttingen/Germany and an LL.M of the European University Institute in Florence/Italy in International and European Law. He graduated in law at the University of Göttingen and passed his bar exam in Berlin.

## **Carl Shapiro**

Carl Shapiro is the Deputy Assistant Attorney General of Economic Analysis in the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice.

Dr. Shapiro is a leading scholar in economics, with a wealth of experience on issues, including patents, intellectual property and licensing, network economics, and unilateral effects in mergers. Dr. Shapiro is taking a leave of absence from the University of California at Berkeley, where he is Transamerica Professor of Business Strategy in the Haas School of Business and a Professor of Economics. He has been at the Haas School of Business since 1990.

Dr. Shapiro was previously the Antitrust Division's Economics Deputy from August 1995 to June 1996, where he provided economic analysis on a variety of antitrust cases, including Microsoft, NASDAQ and several mergers. Shapiro had been a Senior Consultant with CRA International, an economic consulting company.

He was vice-chair of the American Bar Association Antitrust Section's Economics Committee from 1995-1998. Shapiro taught at the Woodrow Wilson School and the Department of Economics at Princeton University for 10 years.

He has published one book, "Information Rules: A Strategic Guide to the Network Economy," and numerous articles in the areas of industrial organization, competition policy, patents, network economics and the economics of innovation and competitive strategy. Shapiro received his Ph.D. in Economics from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) in 1981. He also earned B.S. degrees in mathematics and economics from MIT as well as an M.A. in mathematics from UC Berkeley.

## Karen E. Silverman

### Partner

#### Practices

Antitrust and Competition

#### Bar Qualifications

California

#### Education

JD, University of California, Berkeley, School of Law (Boalt Hall), 1988

BA, Wellesley College, 1985



**SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE**  
505 Montgomery Street  
Suite 2000  
San Francisco CA 94111-6538  
+1.415.391.0600 Phone  
+1.415.395.8095 Fax

[karen.silverman@lw.com](mailto:karen.silverman@lw.com)

#### Experience

Karen E. Silverman is a litigation partner in Latham & Watkins' San Francisco Office, and a member of the Global Antitrust and Competition Practice Group. She handles antitrust representations of all sorts, including governmental and private enforcement matters and litigation in connection with domestic and international transactions, alleged cartels, pricing and distribution issues and consumer protection and privacy issues. Ms. Silverman represents companies on strategic mergers, civil litigation and criminal enforcement matters. She also provides day-to-day antitrust counseling to a broad range of clients. She has particular expertise in the areas complex transactions and counseling in high technology, biotechnology, consumer products, industrial inputs, health care and retail.

Before joining Latham & Watkins, Ms. Silverman worked at the US Department of Justice Antitrust Division as Special Assistant to the Assistant Attorney General, and in the Foreign Commerce Section. In 1993, she returned to private practice and to the Bay Area in 1996.

Ms. Silverman was named among the "Top 100 Lawyers in California" for 2009 by *The Daily Journal*, with the newspaper calling her "a corporate antitrust extraordinaire" who has advised on "a staggering number of huge deals." Additionally, she been recognized as one of "California's Top Women Litigators" in 2008 and 2009 by *The Daily Journal*, as a leading California Antitrust attorney by the *Chambers & Partners USA Guide* (2006-2008) and also as one of "California's Leading Competition Practitioners by *Who's Who Legal: California* (2007-2009).

She is a past Chair of the monopoly practices (Section 2) Committee of the ABA Antitrust Section, has recently completed a term on the Executive Committee of the California State Bar Antitrust Section and is active in a variety of professional and other trade associations. She speaks and writes on a wide range of antitrust topics and is a *Lecturer* at the Haas School of Business, University of California, Berkeley.

**W. Stephen Smith**  
Morrison & Foerster LLP

Mr. Smith is Co-Chair of Morrison & Foerster's Global Antitrust and Competition Law Practice Group. He regularly represents parties before both the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission in merger and other antitrust investigations. Mr. Smith represents parties in antitrust litigation at both the trial and the appellate levels, including Cargill, Inc. in *Cargill, Inc. v. Monfort of Colorado, Inc.*, 479 U.S. 104 (1986). He also counsels clients on a wide range of antitrust issues in a variety of industries, including high-technology, life sciences, financial services, communications, and transportation.

Mr. Smith is recommended as a leading lawyer in the 2009 edition of *Chambers USA*, the 2009 edition of *Legal 500*, and the 2009 edition of *PLC Which Lawyer?*. In recognition of his superior client service, he has been named to the *BTI Client Service All-Star Team* for law firms.

Mr. Smith received his B.A. degree from Northwestern University in 1978, his M.B.A. from the Northwestern University Graduate School of Management in 1979, and his J.D. from the University of Chicago Law School in 1983. Mr. Smith is active in the Antitrust Section of the American Bar Association. He is currently editing the Mergers & Acquisitions chapter of the *2009 Annual Review of Antitrust Law Developments*. He is a co-author of the ABA Antitrust Section Monograph 16, *Private Litigation Under Section 7 of the Clayton Act: Law and Policy* (1989), the author of the merger and joint venture section of the *Corporate Counseling Committee's Antitrust Compliance Handbook* (1993), and a co-author of *World Antitrust Law and Practice* (1997). Mr. Smith also serves on the Litigation Screening Committee for the American Civil Liberties Union of the National Capital Area.

## Biography of GARY ZANFAGNA

Gary Zanfagna is Chief Antitrust Counsel and Associate General Counsel at Honeywell International Inc. Before joining Honeywell, Mr. Zanfagna was Assistant Director for Policy Planning at the Federal Trade Commission in Washington, D.C. At the Commission, he was one of the principal authors of the *Antitrust Guidelines for Collaborations Among Competitors* issued by the Commission and the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice. Prior to joining the Commission, Mr. Zanfagna was an antitrust attorney with Jones Day in Washington, D.C. Currently, Mr. Zanfagna is a member of the Council of the ABA Antitrust Section. Mr. Zanfagna received his J.D. from the University of Virginia and his B.A. from the College of William & Mary.